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FOR CLAIMANT:
RICHARD YOUNG, ATTORNEY AT LAW (via Telephone)
MATTHEW BARNETT, ATTORNEY AT LAW (Vvia Phone)

DAN DUNN, ATTORNEY AT LAW (Vvia Phone)

FOR RESPONDENT:

GIBSON, DUNN & CRUTHCHER, L.L.P.

MAURICE SUH, ATTORNEY AT LAW

DANIEL L. WEISS, ATTORNEY AT LAW

LAW OFFICES OF HOWARD L. JACOBS .

HOWARD L. JACOBS, ATTORNEY AT LAW
PATRICE BRUNET, PANEL CHAIR (via Phone)
RICHARD MCLAREN, ARBITRATOR (Via Phone)
CHRISTOPHER CAMPBELL, ARBITRATOR (Vvia Phone)
CARMEN FROBOS, CASE ADMINISTRATOR, AAA (Phone)

FLOYD LANDIS (via Phone)
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Tuesday, April 24, 2007, 6:05 p.m.
. *Ek%k
MR. BRUNET: Hello, everyone. The agenda for today
references the one that was circulated by Mr. Suh.
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However, I would Tike to send it out to the parties or

panel members if you've had any other thoughts or items
that you would Tike to add to the agenda at this point
in time. Are there any suggestions of other --

MR. CAMPBELL: I just want to get the agenda items.

MR. SUH: Mr. Campbell, I could repeat'them for you.
Also, if you are with your computer, I could reforward
the e-mail so that you have it without having to look
for it. what is your preference?

MR. CAMPBELL: well, Mr. Ssuh, what is the date of
that e-mail 'cause I'm right at my computer, and I know
I have it.

MR. SUH: It was sent on my time Monday at 8:03 a.m.

And just -- if thiS'ﬁslof»any‘ease *I am actually 1in
the middle of resend1ng 1t‘aga1n to everyohe SO'I've
just sent it ot everyone. |

MR. BRUNET: This is Patrice Brunet. For the
benefit of Mr. cCampbell and othehs, I will recite the
six points that appeared on the documents. The first
point being the response to the second_hequest for

documents. Point No. 2 is the prdposed witness order.
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Point No. 3 is the proposed media ohder. Front slash
Media Consultant. Fourth point is the proposed
confidentiality order The f1fth po1nt is a br1ef1ng
schedule. The s1xth po1nt 1s the sett1ng of the f1na1
status conference.

Are there any other points that the parties or
the panel members would Tike to add to those six points?

MR. CAMPBELL: This 1is Chris Campbell. I do want to
Page 3.
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discuss the publication of the B sample test results.

MR. SUH: This is Maurice. The only other item, of
course, we do want to talk a little bit more about our
request for continuance. I know that this:was addressed
by Mr. Brunet's e-ma{i,‘buf'l WOuida1ike»€b put at least
that on the agenda for a little further d{scussion.

MR. BRUNET: So we will have No. 7, the result B
test; and No. 8, the request for continuance.

Anything else? Al11 right. So let's get right
into it.

Point No. 1 -- and those are mainly the points
that was Mr. Suh was raising; so I may address some of
them, but I'11 turn it over to Mr. Suh.

on the first point, the response to second
request for documents. Mr. suh, do you have any --

MR. SUH: Surely. I think our concern‘was twofold.

The first concern was that until the'pane1's fiha1 order

i Y Fay
i ¢ oA
W
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on the second request for documents was 1issued, fhe
USADA, I believe, didn't understand.the scope of what
they were supposed to continues to provide. Again for
us this has proven to be an jssue because it relates
directly to the preparati6ﬁléf our trial brief. And so
that was our first Concérn.

The second concern {s‘that even during the call
last time, USADA indicated that it would get back with
us with further follow-up information within one week's
time, and that was at the specific duestioning of
Mr. Campbell. And we‘hévévhot:heard ahYthihg back. And
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again the response to the second request for documents,

both as to the specific remaining items, as well .as to
the EDF's strongly impact=out ability to prepare our
trial brief, number one; and number two, to be
responsive to some of the issues raised in USADA's trial
brief.

MR. BRUNET: Mr. Suh, there have been a lot of
documents that have been circulating. in the past few
days. Could you point.the'pane1 to the specific
document that you raised with the‘pane1 1n%order to help
you with this? There are odtstanding issues that you're
referring to on the document that you're still waiting
for.

MR. SUH: Wwell, I think -- yes. I mean, the issues

i
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that we're waiting for -~

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. Suh, this is chris Campbe11. You
had written a letter outlining exactly what you needed
more of.

MR. SUH: That' s r1ght It s the 1etter that was
dated April 5 of 2007 and 1t went 1nto'1nU i th1nk
some detail what 1t 1s we wanted And as you will
recall, on April 11 we had substantial d1scuss1on about
all of these items. And we have not achieved resolution
on them. And let me say the items are very important to
our ability to prepare,'in particular, our trial brief.

And Mr. Brunet, Tet me give you one example in

response to your question.: ‘One of the Targe outstanding
issues was the delivery or the potential delivery on the

scope of the standard operating procedures of the
Page 5
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Tlaboratory. And'wé were t61d-severa1 diffErent tHings
during the course of the April 11 call.

Those things were, number one, USADA said it
wasn't sure whether or not there were standard operating
procedures. At one point we were told that standard
operating procedures were-already provided to us. And
then, thirdly, we wére told that to the extent that they
weren't sure about that, they would get back with us to

see whether or not they, in fact, existed.

The reason why this is important, of course, is

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD
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that we have not -- that in_USADA's:tria1;?rief, it
references procedufeé and pfotoco1s fhat‘véry much
appear to come from standard operating procedures. And
again we don't have a resolution on that issue,‘and
those are big issues. It's not just that we have
received pages of documentation.' It;s thaf we haven't
received the pages‘of dodqmentation thét‘réTate to the
issues in the case. | ‘H‘ |

I mean, when we started the statu§ conference
hearing on this matter on the discovery on February 22,
February 23, there wére two large categories.of items
that resolved or was our attempt to resolve a large
number of discovery requests. 'One of those were the
electronic data fi1esﬁthat1§o fO‘fhe carbo?jisotope
ratio testing. And'the othér:waSvthe standard operating
procedures. ‘

If you recall, Mr. Brunet, that we received
some but not others. And Mr. Young's comment was

Page 6
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something to the effect of "No good deed goes

unpunished.” we just don't have any resolution on those
issues, and those are central to the preparation of our
defense. The other pages we have received --

MR. BRUNET:  Mr. Suh 1ook1ng at ‘your ﬂetter of
April 11, where the first section you name\some

witnesses that you listed be present in person at the

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

hearing. I understand that's been resolved over the
past hours.

The second point is the 1ist of soP's for his
defense. Have you had any response from USADA on those
requests? ' | | ‘ |

MR. SUH: I'm sorry, Mr. Brunet‘ I don't mean to
interrupt. Wwe have not ach1eved a reso1ut1on on the

witnesses that would attend We have a d1sagreement

[ 5

we provided the pane1 w1th the fo11ow up e- ma11
indicating who we thought shou1d attend pursuant to the
panel's direction, but we have not resolved any of those
issues.

MR. BRUNET: I'm sorry, Mr. suh. which parts of
those issues have you not resolved at this point? My
understand was thatithe 1s$ues that were not resolved
were the names of the witnesses that USADA said they
would make thoée witnesses avai]abﬁe‘but not necessarily
in person. And you insisted that four of those
witnesses, in addition to Mr. Mark mark and Ms. Magongu
be present at the hearing And I circu1ated a few hours
ago a message from the pane1 to the effect that they

AR 5

were to appear in person o x
. ' Page 7 . [
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Now, is there anything else that is unresolved
with respect to withnesses?:

MR. JACOBS: I don't think we got that e-mail.
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That's the confusion. This is Howard Jacobs. If you
sent an e-mail saying;that'those witnesses;are to appear
in person, I have not seen that yet. i

MR. BARNETT: And Mr. Brunet, this is Matt Barnett.
We haven't received it, either.

MR. SUH: Yeah. That's why I was confused. we
haven't received -- I haven't.‘ Howard hasn't seen it.

I hasn't seen it. )

MR. MCLAREN: I think it got circu1ated amongst us
but didn't get to the counsel .

MR. BRUNET: Thaf's what T rea1ize now. I'm looking
at my computer, and for some reason it got stuck in my
out box. Bear with me.

You should receive that procedura1 order No. 4
either during the conversat1on or very short1y after
I'11 find another way to send it out. i

MR. YOUNG: This js Richard Young. As?a
clarification, are we paying for that, or are they
paying for that?

MR. BRUNET: 1It's not something that was addressed
in the procedural order. |

MR. YOUNG: Richard young again. Can we have an
answer to that, part1cu1ar1y, if they're ca111ng
witnesses that we were not otherwise going to bring.

MR. BRUNET: You're making submissions to the effect

Page 8
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that some of those witnesses or all of witnesses would
be to the cost of the athlete?

MR. YOUNG: Correct. _

MR. SUH: And this is*Manrice. ‘We, of course, would
object to that proposal. Again, this was a result of an
offer by USADA to make those witnesses available. And
in the context of that offer, it was clear that those
people would be here in person. To at this hour turn
around and suggest that the athlete pay for it out of
his own pocket is contrary to the c1ear meaning of what
occurred during the course iof that status conference,
and it's just not right.

MR. YOUNG: Richard Young. we have obviously have a
very different view of that. we've told counsel that we
would make witnesses available by’te1ephone. They
objected to that, and then we said that's fine. we
would do it by v1deo conference and Mr. snh even said
they had a video conference in their Par1s office.

But the pane1 ought to do what the panel thinks
is correct. )

MR. BRUNET: The pane] w111 certa1n1y take that
under advisement. If the parties want to subm1t written
observations on this. I th1nk the panel has the

position of the part1es wh1ch are qu1te s1mp1e
[
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MR. SUH: Mr. Brunet, am I clear in understand1ng
Page 9
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that procedural order No. 4, which we will receijve
shortly, addresses the response to the second request
for documents? or should we go back to talking about
that? “ : ;:.1' BRI :

MR. BRUNET: We11; we can go back to ta1king about
that because the panel is not clear as to the level of
conversations that occurred between the parties and
where you were standing both. Because the last document
that I have is dated April 11 that is'signed by Mr. Suh,
but I don't have any reply from USADA on the various
SoP's that are requested. A blank refusal to provide
them. Are you getting them at the present time? If
they are refusing them, what is their position on the
basis of refusal? o

Mr. Young, do you have any observations?

MR. YOUNG: Yeah Th1s 15 R1chard Young “tet me
give you an answer on that. : L ;

The background was certa1n1y m1scharacter1zed
by Mr. suh. we haven't been all over the p1ace. what
we've said is, one, from the beginning under the
technical documents, we don't have to produce those, but
we have produced them. | And ‘the sum that we have
produced are those SOP S that re1ate spec1f1ca11y and

only spec1f1ca11y to the TE and the IRMS.
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After our last hearing, we got the Tist of the
other sopP's that Respondent wanted. we've g1ven that to
LNDD. They've organi;ed these documents, and if they
aren't delivered todayj”theyf11 befde1iver%e by tomorrow

Page 10
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morning.

MR. BRUNET: . So there are still some SOP's that have

not been delivered, but those may be in the package that

can you're sending to Mr. Suh?
MR. YOUNG: That's right. Because what they're
asking for is SoP's that go beyond just the sopP's, that

go to TE ratio or IRMS. They are more general SOP's

that apply to TE ratio and*IRMs;”but’they’ﬁpp1y to other

things. And those aré additional SOP's Mﬁ;‘Landis
agreed to produce. |

MR. BRUNET: This is Mr. Brunet. 1In your
correspondence to Mr. Suh, I would assume you would
outline the SOP's that you are sending and then the
SOP's you are not sending because they're not part of
the SOP that you shOu]d be ;ending? Is there going to
be an itemized 1ist such as that? -

MR. YOUNG: we'll itemize what we're sénding. And
we are not intentionally ho1d1ng anything back that's
responsive to or directly responsive to the specific
request in his Tetter. B

Just so that everybody‘kﬁows;'thefe are lots
DA ‘ B ,

S
7
!
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and Tots and Tots of SOP's generally that it doesn't
appear to us that hé's asked for. But if he sees the
response and thinks it's not what he asked for, then I
expect we'll hear back

MR. BARNETT: Th1S 15 Matt Bar‘nett Jl.iSt to expand

on that response, where there's been an SOP requested

for LNDD on that specific 1ist and LNDD does not have an

SOP, we will so note. And we will a1so so note where we

Page 11
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believe the SOP requested has a1reedy beeh provided.

MR. BRUNET: we'll send that message on the SOP's
within 24 hours?

MR. YOUNG: Yes.

MR. BRUNET: And there's a last point that Mr. Suh's
touching in his April 11.cofrespondence, and I'm quoting
that there are two pages which from the context of the
documents are clearly only one sample of hie study
related to the effect of testosterone administration on
carbon-isotope ratio testing over a several-day period;
that Mr. Saw requests that the data from the rest of the
subject of the study or' to receive confirmation only
consisted of one 1nd1v1dua1 »

Can you also address th1s po1nt in your
correspondence?

MR. YOUNG: We can or we can address it right now if

you prefer.
13
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MR. BRUNET: You can address it right hoW, but I
would also expect for you, so‘thet we could close the
Toop, if you can address it 1h youricorrespondence.

MR. YOUNG: This is a study that was done --a
broader study was done by u. C L.A. where they gathered
data. They are report1ng the data out not a11 at once
but as some substud1es, subreported stud1e§, if you
will. B

And, Matt, what was the response? Do you have
the exact words of the response we got from U.C.L.A.?

MR. BARNETT: This is Matt Barnett. I do not have

Page 12
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the exact words of the response at this time. we've

actually asked Dr. Kaplan to provide us in writing with

his response which we will attach to the letter if we

receive it. I have not received it as yet.

MR. YOUNG: Okay.

MR. SUH: Mr. Brunet --

MR. BRUNET: Yes, Mr. Suh.

MR. SUH: I suppose in order to finally close the
Toop, there wére -- there was at least one other 1issue

in the proposed order on the second request for

documents, and that related to the declared negatives

for 2004 and 2005.

As you may recall, there was a discussion about

whether or not those files were in electronic form or

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT. BEEN PROOFREAD

not or available or not, and we were supposed to hear

back again from USADA within one week, per

Mr. Campbell's direction.

And we hadn't heard anything.

It's been two weeks. But let me say this: I think it

would be also helpful to have the final ruling from the

panel on these issues because to the extent the panel

rules --

of SOP's was generated, as you may recall, was this.

well, let me put it this way: The way the list

heard argument on whether or not the SoP's, as a general

rule, should be requiﬁed to be delivered. At fhe end of

that argument, which took up a good portion of the

April 11 call, we asked whether or not the: matter was

submitted to the panel. Both parties asked whether or

not the matter was submitted to the‘pane1.'7And the

Page 13
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panel indicated yes, that it did not need fo hear any
further argument from the parties. A sentiment I am
sure that the panel has felt on more than one occasion.

Having said that, at the end of that,
Mr. Campbell directed me, in order to help the panel's
decision making, to do two things. One is to send a
list of witnesses and also ‘to describe genéra11y the
kinds of SOP's that we wanéédfto‘keceive.iiThat is what
caused the generation of fhe 1etter‘that ysu're

referring to.

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

So I guess tb c}dée the 1opp, it would be
helpful if the pdne] would {ssue a final order on the
second request for documents. And again, I mean, not to
constantly restate this; but we afe in the middlie of
this issue right nbw. So it's part{cu1ar1y fresh on our
minds. But the preparation of the trial brief without
the SoP's that we have bgen‘a§king for‘is fea11y‘

impossibTe.

I meah, we are beiﬁg told by USADA that they
have complied with éverything they need coﬁp1y with.
But we don't have their SOP's which will allow us to
determine whether or not that's true or not. And I
don't see how we can actually provide a response which
will either be comp1ete or wj11 be what actually
resembles what we wiTl presént'at the arbitration if it
differs. And right now we this don't have any of those
documents. Those documents are th%ngs that we simply --
we needed to have in advance of this preparatory phase.

Page 14
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I mean, for example, what would happen if we

had available to us in argument that a procedure wasn't
followed yet we did not have the opportunity to raise
that. It would be a GCMS +issue; it could be a
Taboratory documentation issue; it could be an IRMS
issue. Those are things‘WHﬁth we were are not -- we

don't have before us. And it's simply not fair for us 16

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

to be in a position of -- given the state of the
document production for us to be forced to'prepare a
trial brief that is supposedly respohsive'io USADA's
brief at this time.

And you know, I don't need to go on and on with
this forever, but let me say this. I mean, it's readily
apparent from their brief that they seem to understand
what the requirements of the 1aboratory are. They make
reference to a number of 1tems which they could only
know by knowing what 1aboratory requirements are. And
so, I mean, I believe that they have had access to those
documents. And we are being forced to respond to them
without having access to those documents.

So Tastly, I would question this. I mean, if
in fact they had those documents a11 a1ong, I don't see
why we are in the process of rece1v1ng theq e1ther the
day before or the day of the due date of our trial
brief. Frankly, I find that timing remarkably
convenient for USADA.

MR. YOUNG: This is‘Richard Young. We haven't seen
any SOP that Mr Suh hasn't seen, and we will -- as soon

as we get one of the SOP's he's requested 1n our hands,
S Page 15
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we will put together the cover of what we are producing,
what they said they don't have, and we will send it -on.

MR. BRUNET: Thank you, Mr. Young. ¢
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If I can understand your concern, Mr. Suh,
through that and if you allow me to frame it, your
concerned that you would beﬂf11ing your brief -- the
deadline is today or tomorrew.

MR. SUH: TIt's tomorrow.

MR. BRUNET: The benefit of some of the SOP's that
Mr. Young may be sending you over the next 24 hours.
Mr. Young states that you have all the sor's, bqt_he's
still going to do a f1na1 rev1ew

MR. YOUNG: Excuse me, Mr, qunep. We;afe sending

the SOP's that were hequested 1h the‘Apri]?ll letter.

And so he does not have those yet. He will have those
by tonight or tomorrow morning. So those are the
additional SoP's. I just didn't want confusion that he
has all of them because there's a 1astvgroup that he
does not have. | '

MR. JACOBS: Wwell, i haye‘d hard f%me ﬁnderstanding
how USADA can know that we're’going to have these
tonight if they've never seen them before.

MR. BRUNET: I'm sorry? cCan you repeat your
question, Mr. Jacobs? - ’

MR. JACOBS: Sure. The repreEenfation is made that
we're going to have a11 these SOP' s ton1ght r1ght after
the representation was made that USADA has never seen
those sOP's. Those statements seem very 1ncons1stent to

Page 16
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me.

MR. BARNETT: This is Mr. Barnett, and I'11 be happy

to answer.

we've been operat1ng on many fronts as the’
other side knows, and we have rece1ved these documents
today and have been 1ook1ng at them to confirm that
they're the right documents and preparing the response
of which I told you the categories before. And I will
be happy to provide the transmittal e-mail which
indicates that we received them within the Tlast six
hours. And we're trying to prepare our response. And
the other side knows that we were on é call with
Dr. Botre earlier today. So this is not as if this is
our only thing to do, and we're happy to provide these
as soon as we possibly can. | ‘

MR. JACOBS: We11, the sooner the better given that

we have a br1ef due. |

:A(.

MR. BRUNET: Th1s s Mr Brunet 3 Your‘br1ef is due
tomorrow, gent1emen. If the rece1pt of those SOP's and
that specific portion of those SOP's you find that may
need to be addressed in your brief, I think that'the
panel would allow you to complete your brief within a
very short period of perhaps 24 hours after you receive
those SOP's. 1Is that something that wou]d resolve this

matter?
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MR. JACOBS: This is Howard Jacobs. That's, with
Page 17 :
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all due respect, impossible to answer since we've never
seen the SOP's and 24 hours is a remarkably short period
of time. | '

We've been asking for these documents for six
months. And now we have 24 hours to review them and
respond. That doesn't seem fair.

MR. BRUNET: I'm going to allow you to review the
SOP's and come back immediately to the panel with your
assessment. ‘

MR. SUH: That would be fine. That's a good
proposal, Mr. Brunet. ;

MR. BRUNET: I would 11ke to strike the proposal and
suggest rather that you consult -- once you receive the
SOP's that you consult with USADA, and hopefu11y you can
resolve this between the two of you and then for the
panel to intervene if you're still in a deadlock. But I
would strongly suggest that you resolve this matter
between the two of youl | | o T

MR. JACOBS: Meaning that We should go to USADA and
try to come to some agreement as to how Tong we get to
address the issues raised in the SoOP's?

MR. BRUNET: That's r‘i‘ght.

MR. JACOBS: We can try to do that.

MR. YOUNG: This is Richard Young. Iffwou1d be my

?
P

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

understanding that we would still get their brief but
they would have an additional period of time to
supplement to the issues raised in the SoP.

MR. SUH: No;'théi is]hof our understanaing. That

Page 18
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1s not our understanding. Anq it is frankly, as we have

been talking about, d, frankly disingenuous suggestion.

The issue is th1s —-‘and I've tr1ed to give a
couple of examples dur1ng the course of th1s call. The
issue is that throughout the brief, their brief, it lays
out arguments that the things that have occurred at the
lab occurred in a manner which was consistent with --
I'11 just put it broadly -- good laboratory practice.

As part of that argument, there is substantial
portion of the brief that's taken up with a discussion
about how that was -- how that good practice was
accomplished with the laboratory's own processes. That
analysis is impacted by the SOP's because the SoP's, of
course, define what is good practices -- what are good
practices. And there 1s no way to carve out the, quote,
SOP part because the SOP part 1s rea11y t he part which
relates spec1f1ca11y to whether or not th1ngs were done
appropriately or not. And that s the entirety of the
case. That is the case.

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. suh, this is chris campbell. oOne

thing I'm trying to understand in terms of -- and I just

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

don't have it in front of me. Maybe Richard can help
me.

Right now we have the briefing scheduTe, for
you to file your -- I guess it 'would be in opposition --
on the 25th. And the 1t s my understand1ng that USADA
would file their rep1y on what date7 )

MR. SUH: The reply is due T believe, the 2nd of

May.
Page 19
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that takes place after the 2nd?

MR. SUH:

of testimony by the 4th of may.

MR. CAMPBELL:
I just want to get both your partiés' fee1ﬁngs about
this. what if we push this briefing schedule where the
reply would be due May 9, USADA's reply would be due
May 9. And then we would adjust everybody else's brief

accordingly.

hearing on the 14th?

MR. YOUNG: This is Richard Young.

points, and I'11 address yours first, Mr. Campbe11.

call, we asked Respondent to tell us what their defenses

were going to be, and they have given pieces, but

As you recall in our very first conference

Let me make two

Now, are there any further briefing

We are to submit witness Tists and summary

well, my question becomes -- I mean,

Is that something scheduled for the

O 0 N O v A W N R

ol
B o

they've refused to tell us what all their defenses are -

oo
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going to be, and wé'ré notvgo{ng to‘kndw wﬁat wftnesses
we have to call until we see what their defenses are.
We still don't know whether théy're going to raise any
medical issues, for example. So that's the first point.
So anything that pushes back our finding out what their
defenses are going to be 15'1g not agreeab]e to us.
Second, you askedgébout other briéfing. As you
know in our opening brief, we reserved the'right to
submit supplemental briefs on two issues when we got the
information. One would be‘thé reteéting that took place
in Paris. Second would be what we get from them in
Page 20
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response to their document production, which is due

tomorrow. And then the third issue -- and I assume that
they would take the same position on the electronic data
file information. And then :the third question while I
have the floor is, Mr. Brunet, you were about ready to
say something when Mr. Suh spoke over you, which was
what your understanding would be whether they file a
brief and supplement it on the SOP's or whether they
don't. And I never got to hear what you said 'cause he
spoke Touder.

MR. BRUNET: Wwell, that was the suggestion to
respect to the briefing schedule that we had established
on the 23rd of March. The respondent has known since

that time that they have an April 25 deadline to (audio >3
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breakthrough). waeVer, theke are some dotuments that
the Respondent may receive ever the next 24 hours. So
the respondent will -- I can't imagine that the
Respondent has not comb1eted or almost comp1eted his
brief. sSo that would be filed today or tomorrow. And
any additional representations'the panel could receive
within a very short delay after the Respondent receives
the additional -- the SOP s. | t

So 1'd Tike to focus on thts'point“because
we're looking at the schedule here, and wevhad
established very, very tight schedule that could not
suffer any delays in order to respect our May 1l4st
first day of the hearing. So we're trying to resolve
this in as much a fair way as possible. To entertain

the idea of push1ng back the whole brief on the
Page 21
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Reepondent by even a'week wo&1dfhave a domﬁno effect
that would have a very negative impact on this case.
And I'm not talking the public 1hpact, of?tourse. I'm
talking about redoing a Tot of the work here, which
would not be in the benefit of any of the parties.

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. Brunet, this is chfis Campbell.
I think Mr. Suh had submitted requests for his EDF files
over a month ago or more;'and‘we know that that was
going to be part of his case in chief. And we don't

even know when he's going to get the access to ”

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

information to his f11es So I don t th1nk it's fair to
say that he's known s1nce March 23 that h1s br1ef is due
on this date. Certainly, he hasn t known the fact that
he wouldn't be getting this information. He should have
gotten it a long time ago. So that's my concern.

It seems to me that we should work out some
sort of reasonable plan for him to be able to have this
information before he puts his brief together.

Now, that bring§ me to the.questien of -- and I
know you've go to talk to Dr. Botre. what's the timing
on getting the information from the EDF file? Do we
have any information on that?

MR. SUH: Yes, Mr. Campbell, we do. we have agreed
that Dr. Botre would appear at 1:00 p.m. at LNDD 1in the
presence of both USADA s experts ‘and our experts for the
process of retr1eva1 of the EDF s and that . dur1ng that
time they would meet and confer about the instructions
to be provided for the analysis to be run on the EDF's

Page 22
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on the 26th and if there were disagreement, that we

would be called shortly thereafter, the parties would be
called, and we wdu1d attempt to work it out. Failing an
attempt to work it out, we would involve the panel's
participation. You know; we believe from speaking

with -- from our eXpéftslat the very\1east§that-the

process of performing the removal of the EDF'S and the

ROUGH COPY -~ HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

analysis can be done relatively quickly after that event
occurs. And so that is the current schedule in place.

MR. CAMPBELL: This Chris campbell. when you say
"relatively quickly," can you give me a Tittle more
definitive time Tine? . .

MR. SUH: I believe -- I don't know because that
conversation is still going to take place. I believe
that we can get a more specific timeframe for you
tomorrow, which I w111‘§énd;;0‘yoe‘by’g_mai1. But we
are talking about a matter‘bf‘déyé and nbfiq matter of
weeks, obviously. | o ‘ o

MR. CAMPBELL: So is it your understanding -- this
is Chris campbell again -- that you should have all that
information by April 307

MR. SUH: We're‘not sure. But I mean,,given the
timeframe, we obviousTy waht it as quickly as possible.
I'm just not sure exactly How Tong. I mean, obviously,
if we could get it by the 27th, that would be terrific.
And April 30 would be great also. We're going to try to
get it as quickly as possible. It dbesn't -- it
certainly doesn't benefit us at all for there to be

delay on having these operations done. Ande will
Page 23 CoA
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mention, without going into the entirety of the
background, that ever since the briefing schedule was

set, we were plainly aware that our brief would be due. 26
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And on account of the knowledge that our brief would be
due, we've tried to move this process forward on our
end. We have sent the pane1 e ma11s and 1etters
requesting an update on the status And, nn fact, this
call today is a result of that very concerﬁ, that it
seems like the schedule is coming crashing down on us.

If there was anything we could have done to
make USADA comply with the discovery obligations or to
get the EDF's sooner, we certainly would have done it.
We don't want to be in this situation oursé]ves. I
mean, 1it's a terrible situation for us to be, in to be
receiving data so close to the beginning of the
arbitration. There's Titerally no advantage to it from
our end. So we have been cognizant of it, and we've
tried. , |

MR. BRUNET: This is Mr. Brunet. Do you héve the
briefing schedule in. front of you, by any chance? The
briefing schedule that was sent on March 237

MR. SUH: I can get it. One second. :

MR. BRUNET: while you're trying to get it, I've
been trying to send procedure order No. 4 to the
parties. If anybody's on Tline to confirm that they've
received it. | |

MR. CAMPBELL: This is'cChris campbell. T I've
received it twice. | | |

27
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MR. BARNETT: This is Matt Barnett. We received it
as well.

MR. JACOBS: As have we.

MR. SUH: Yes, we have it. I have the e-mail in
front of me. | |

MR. BRUNET: oOkay. I'1l stop sending it, then.

MR. CAMPBELL: This is Chris Campbell. As I'm
looking at these time Tines and appreciating what
everybody has said, our hearing's scheduled to start on
the 14th of May. I mean, there is between‘now and then
close to 17 days perhaps between now, and May 14.
There's 19 days. | 2 :

It seens . to me we'll be able to work out some
reasonable resolution in that 19-day period to allow
these parties to get their information and to file their
briefs in that timeframe. It seems we can do both. I
don't think we have to preclude one or the other.

MR. YOUNG: This is Richérd Young.' I would simply
follow the suggestion that Mr. Brunet made, which is
that Respondent be allowed to sUpp1ement their brief
with new information on the electronic data files. It's
the same situation as the retesting. It was something
that we wished would have happened a 1ot earlier. The
electronic data f11es 1s not anyth1ng that USADA |

delayed. we offered to do that back in February So »8
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they can file a supp1ementa1 brief within however many
Page 25 :
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days the panel thinks is appropriate based on the
electronic data file information. we'd be interested to
see that and will respond.

MR. SUH: Let me throw th1s out as a comprom1se
That by tomorrow we wou]d be willing ‘to send over a
brief 1ist of defenses so that Mr. Young cou1d be
satisfied about the scope of what he needs to prepare.
If his issue is that he is concerned we are'going to
claim that Martians have come down and injected with
Mr. Landis with testosterone or that he was abducted by
Nazi frogmen and injected with testosterone, we can put
those concerns to rest by setting forth a 1ist with a
brief description of what we believe our defenses to be
based upon the state of the discovery as it stands.
That way that should give him some comfort about his
preparation. And by the same token, it would allow us
to provide a cohesive br1ef _

And one of the 1ssues that we're concerned
about in terms of prov1d1ng]aicohes1ve br1ef and not
providing a supplemental brief is that aga1n a
supplemental brief would not necessarily be additional
material. It might be material which is different
from -- based upon what we 1earhed, different from what

we would submit without having the discovery. It would, -
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in effect, cause us to write a trial brief twice. And
that's what I'm concerned about bluntly. I mean, there
really is no way, 1in ﬁy mind, to write this trial brief
and simply supp1ementvjt ) In order for 1t to make sense

Page 26
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and to read properly would be to write it again. And

given the timing that's left, we simply don't have the
personal resources to write it twice.

MR. BRUNET: Following up on your suggested
compromise, I still haven't heard a date by which you
would file that cohesive brief. Is that going to be the
end of your conclusion?

MR. SUH: Yeah. I suppose it depends when we get
the EDF's because we'd have to'get the EDF, data'back
quickly. why don't we go this: why don'f%we --I'm
looking at the calendar now. why don't we agree to file
it by -- assuming we get the EDF data by the first of
May, file our brief by the 4th of May. And then any
responsive brief would come in the middle of the
following week from USAbA. And that s under the
presumption that we Wou1d send é 1ist of oﬁr defense
topics over to USADA‘by tdmorrow.

MR. YOUNG: This is Rich. May I respond to that?

MR. CAMPBELL: Yes, MI"‘. Young'.

MR. YOUNG: This is a technical scientific case. It

would be nice to know what their 1ist of defense topics

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT ‘BEEN PROOFREAD.

are, but the devil is in the detai1; and that is what we
would need to get to our experts. So if you see the

defenses that have already been raised, you can see this
is technical stuff. The 1ist of their defenses that we
would need -- what Mr. Suh‘has suggested i$ that:we end
up getting their briefS tén:days before the hearing and
then in the last ten days before the hearing we have to

then start preparing a responsive brief. That's
Page 27
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outrageous. There are all sorts of 1ssues‘that they can
address that will give us a fair opportunity to deal
with them now. And if they need to supplement
electronic data files -- I mean, God forbid that they
should file a brief now and then have to change their
theory of defense. ' But if that's what the electronic
data files show, then they'11 have that opportunity to
do it. ‘

MR. JACOBS: You know, I have to say -- this is
Howard Jacobs. 1It's hard to stomach outrage over having
to prepare in ten days when that's exactly what we're
being forced to do, only it's going to be less than ten
days. Wwe've been ask1ng for th1s data for six months.
we still don't have it. We have a hear1ng on May 14,
and we're being asked to do exact1y what Mr. Young finds
so outrageous of a request on them.

MR. SUH: And further, I guess let it not be lost
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that from Mr. Young's own comment, they intend to bring
in the testing as it relates to seven entire new test
results or more -- I don't know how many they're going
to try to use -- right during the same timeframe, which
would give us not a métterybf ten days but what amounts
to a matter of hours. . I mean, ‘when we balance out what
the relative 1mpos1t{on‘;s'6n the part1es,‘Mr Landis
has taken the 1mpos1t1on entirely upon his shoulders.
And if anything, what Mr. young's comment really goes to
is that we all need more time. We all need more time to

resolve these issues. If truly intend upon bringing

Page 28



12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

O 0 N O 1 bW N R

ol S S S R S
vi bW NN R O

07Landis04241.txt .
seven new RMS results, which we don't have any of the

documentation for -- and I would assume that we would
get right in the middle of the period of days or weeks
before the -- of days, rea11y,:before the ‘arbitration
begins, we are in a terr1b1e situatioh. Ahd how is that
any different? 1In fact, it"s much worse than the
situation that USADA is now complaining about.

MR. YOUNG: This is Richard Young. oOur suggestion
for the electronic data files is the same as the data
for the retesting. The retesting data, as soon as we
get it, we will file a supplement and get it to them.
we didn't suggest holding off on our brief because we
hadn't yet gotten the retesting data. And the

electronic file data, they ought to file their brief, 3
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and as soon as they get 1t they f11e that And then
you know what? we' ve got a very short t1me to respond
to the electronic data file.

MR. BARNETT: This is Matt Barnett. It has to be
noted in this discussion that Mmr. soh's complaint about
the retesting and Mr. Jacobs's comp}aint about the
retesting has to be done in the cohtext of the fact that
that further analysis wou1d have been donelin December
or January of last year but for their continued efforts
to express that further analysis.

MR. JACOBS: well, they could have done it last fall
if they hadn't waited. So to place all that blame on us
is completely disingenuous.

MR. SUH' And moreover the retest1ng resu1ts are

completely separate samp1es The EDF's that we're go1ng
Page 29 :
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to get are for this sample. That is an easy thing to

supplement. It's like a separate case. But what we are

asking for is documents and data as it relates to our

own case.

MR. CAMPBELL: This is chris campbell.

I mean, we

might be getting ahead of ourselves with these seven

tests. But I think I've seen some things

going around.

And I just wanted to know -- and we can address it

later. But wasn't it true that you had angexpert that

wasn't allowed to see parts of the test?

Is that true,

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

or is that just rumor?

MR. SUH: It is absolutely true. It is absolutely

100 percent true. And it was done at the

USADA's Tawyers.

direction of

MR. BRUNET: Chris, we have Dan Dunn on the phone,

who is a Tawyer there. And I think it's fair that he

give that explanation.

MR. DUNN: This is Dan Dunn. I was there last week,
S S A S S |
and whomever said that it was true that thé experts for

Mr. Landis were prevehted'frbm observing the testing is

simply inaccurate. And I can elaborate.

report, Mr. Campbell, that you heard that

Mr. Scott was denied access was directly a result of him
making a surprise visit after having agreed with us and
with the laboratory that there was no need for anyone to
appear on Sunday. And on‘tﬁat‘premise, both our expert
and myself left for the united states, on1y to find out

that Mr. scott was at the door knocking to get in after

Page 30
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having agreed not to appear.

MR. CAMPBELL: Hold it a second. Hold it a second.
were there tests going on on Sunday when this guy wasn't
let in? That's a yes or no. Were there tests going on?
Were their tests going on on the sample on the Sunday
when Mr. Scott knocked on'the door and asked to come in?

It's a yes or a no.
34
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MR. DUNN: The answer to that is there were analysis
being run on sunday, and he fully understood that and
agreed that he did not need ‘to appear. :

MR. CAMPBELL: Andlhe:wasn t allowed tb come in and
see those tests; is that right?

MR. DUNN: Well, nobody from USADA was present, and
he had agreed not to appear; so that was the reason he
was denied access. He had led us to believe that we
could go home safe1y, and we did on the premise that he
was not going to appear, and then he appeared contrary
to the clear understanding of everybody present,
including the Tab.

MR. SUH: And I will say -- this is Maurice -- on
behalf of Mr. scott, that is not true. That is not
true. And it's clear that we're go1ng to have to take
this issue up before the pane1 in greater deta11 But
it's not true. And moreover -~ ;

MR. CAMPBELL: I can't speak for the panel, but in
my mind that is a critical issue with respect to timing.
Because if you have a test that was going on at the time

and the expert wasn't allowed, it doesn't seem to me

that those are tests that shou1d be a11owed in here. 1In
‘Page 31
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which case, it would save us a whole Tot of time and
concern. So that seems to be sort of a threshold issue,

and that was the issue that I wanted to erng up as my 35
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No. 7.
MR. YOUNG: This is Rich. Let me respond to that,
and ban can elaborate later.

One of the reasons that we sent both an expert
and a lawyer to the retesting was because they sent both
an experts and a lawyer and we had concerns with the
lawyer in particular would tried to interfere with the
process. 1It's not uncommon during B sample analysis for
the experts to maybe because‘they have they are own
Tegitimate interests but to d1stract the peop1e that are
conducting the ana1ys1s. And you have 1ssues where they
have to stand back all those kinds of things. Those
issues did in fact occur during the analysis. They were
worked out because there were two Tawyers there and two
experts. »

And so when their 1awyer and expent said "we're
going home," we dec1ded 1t was okay to send our Tawyer
and expert home. That's the first point.

The second point 1is that I don't know the exact
number of samples where the ana1ysis had been completed
by sunday, but certainly the majority of the sample
analysis had been comb1eted of the three bTanks and ten
samples had been comp1eted by that Sunday morn1ng

MR. SUH: This is Maur1ce | Let me respond to that

[

statement. First of a11, we‘d1d not send a lawyer. 36
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Paul Scott is a person who was formerly employed at the
U.C.L.A. laboratory. He is not a practicing lawyer.
He's not even licensed in the state of california where
he Tives. He does not practice law. He practiced law a
Tong time ago. To say‘thdf we sent a 1awy%r, nothing
further from an accurate picture of what attua11y
occurred could be stated.

MR. BRUNET: Mr. Suh --

MR. SUH: Yes.

MR. BRUNET: I hate to interrupt. This is Patrice
Brunet. Although I appreciate the discussion going over
this point, I feel wé're off the agenda and many of the
allegations and what I'm hearing now will certainly
benefit from being represented in written manner because
I don't think we will resolve anything during this
conference call over what happened just recently in
Paris. ‘

Those are seijuS'ﬁséues‘that boté partiés are
raising, and they are‘credjbiiity'iSSUes wiﬁh most oF
the players not being even dn thislmind. fﬁ the
interest of efficiency, I would rather proceed in a
different way and being that USADA intends to bring that
evidence that was collected at LNDD recently as part of
these proceedings, then there is a process'that they do

that in writing, and I'm sure that Respondent will
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quickly address those, perhaps in the manner that you
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have just raised, perhaps in a more elaborative fashion.
But I would rather that we return to our schedule and
leave this issue aside at this point in time.

MR. CAMPBELL: Patrice, when you say -- this is
Chris campbell -- we're goiﬁg Teave this issue aside,
does that mean Tleave this issue aside until we get eht
agenda item, or does that mean leave this issue aside
until some other day?

MR. BRUNET: well, Teave this issue aside until we
have an indication as an panel that USADA intends to
introduce this evidence into this arbitration because I
have not seen that to this date. ;,

MR. CAMPBELL: well, Patrice, that's nbt acceptable
to me because of the timing. I mean, I don't know what
date your timing about, what time you're talking about.
And we've already discussed in a short time 1ine in this
particular issue of all this new evidence that could
come in. It seems to me it cOﬁ]d be a tremendoué waste
of time if, in fact, the‘evidence has been tainted by
the failure of the process to a11ow the expert to see
it. And so we should resolve that issue right away, and
then we can move on. And when I say "right away,” I
mean within the next day or two.

MR. BRUNET: My concern, Chris, is that we are
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hearing the parties argue. He are hearing parties argue

testimony that has not been presented directly to us.
MR. CAMPBELL: A1l I'm trying, Patrice, is that we

give a time and a déad1ine as opposed to jdst giving

‘Pagé 34
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some nebulous sort of "we're going to wait for USADA to

respond” whether they're going to send the document or
not. I just want a definitive time for us to address
this issue with a definitive briefing schédu1e if need
be. But because it's so important given the time, it's
a whole Tot of other information. And I would suspect
we're going to have discovery disputes about that as
well. so if that's an issue that we can sort of wipe
off the table pretty quick, it would really simplify
things. '

MR. BRUNET: I see your point, Chris. You're
referring strictly to the addenda, and I guess your
question was a question directed to USADA when (audio
breakthrough). That's pretty much -- .

MR. CAMPBELL: oOkay. That's not my quéstion It
seems to me that -- the attorney on the 11ne has said
that there expert wasn t a1fowed 1nto part of the B
sample test. So that raises an issue regard1ng whether
the rules were complied with. And it's in my view that
we should resolve that issue within the next couple of

days at the latest because that really goes to the issue 39

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

of whether we'l1l even let the evidence in or to what
extent we let that evidence in, which really addresses a
lot of the parties' problems with how much evidence
they've got to deal with in a short t1meframe before the
trial. So I want -- I hear both arguments but I don't
think we need to argue any more but I th1nk what we
need to do as a panel is set a t1me Tine for this to be

fully briefed and end resolved, I'd say, say two days.
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MR. BRUNET: Chris, could you be more clear on the
time Tine on what? -

MR. CAMPBELL: The time 1line on determining whether
the B sample test would be admissible as evidence given
that their expert was denied entrance to view it.
That's a concrete 1$sue. And as Mr. Young has said,
perhaps it would be for some samples-and hbt others. we
don't know, but it seems to me we need to %ave that
issue resolved, and I'd 1ike to have that resolved
within the next couple days.

MR. BRUNET: This would be a preissue to the main
issue and, obviously, there would have to be
communication between the parties and we may very
quickly get to May 14. ' '

MR. CAMPBELL: I'm saying not May 14. 1I'm saying
that we would have resolved this issue -- what's today?

The 25th. 1'd 1ike to have this issue resolved by the

ROUGH COPY --HAS NOT- BEEN PROOFREAD
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27th or the 28th. i\hean; thatvnot éVén gﬁttjng into
the confidentiality issue: |

MR. BRUNET: I was hearing noise on the telephone.

MR. CAMPBELL: This is Chris. I just think we need
to --

MR. DUNN: This'is Dan Dunn for USADA.A I guess I
have a couple of réaction§ t6 fhat, Mr. Caﬁpbe11. One
is we would need tobprocure affidavits from our expert

who was there and the laboratory representatives who

were there when Mr. Scott and Dr. Davis agreed that they

would not show up on sunday and that we; thereFore, did

Page 36
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not need to show up. So we're going to have to -- and I

don't know their schedules, whether they're available or
not. So that's one problem.

But may I make a suggestion that, when we
tendered the evidence on these other samples, that we
can address this question. “And Mr. Landis's
representatives can state their view of the matter. And
as part of this panel's decision on whether to accept
those samples or any part of them, it can do so with a
fully informed record rather than doing it in piece-meal
fashion.

MR. CAMPBELL: This is chris Campbe11.b You haven't
stated when you're going teaptodUCe that eyidence. And

it seems to me there's a whole Tot of preparation that a1
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Landis's would have to do at the same t1me that they'd
have to evaluate the document

MR. DUNN: One partial response to that -- this is
Dan Dunn again -- is that they were there during the
week of the sampling and had full opportunity to review
the results; so they know what the results are. They
have been -- they had opportunity to ask questions of
the LNDD representat1ves, they had opportun1ty to see
all of the data that was 1n the packages at ‘that time.
So they know what the resu1ts are.

MR. CAMPBELL: This 1is chris Campbell again. That's
your argument, and that argument can be presented, I
think, within two days. And you should have your expert
produce affidavits within two days. I'm sure they will

have an argument as well, and their argument should be
Page 37
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presented within two days with their affidavit. And we
should decide.

MR. SUH: And, Mr. Campbell, just -- dnd the rest of
. X
the panel -- to be perfectly clear, that is not what
happened during the testing process.

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. Suh, you have an opportunity --
you should have an opportunity to make that argument in
a couple of days, and they should as well. Let me ask
you this, Mr. suh, because maybe you don't agree. I

just think this is a timely issue that should be
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resolved sooner than later.

MR. SUH: Wwe're ready to start the briefing.
Mr. Scott is headed back to Los Ange]es He shou1d be
here -- he's on a p1ane r1ght now He shou1d be here
tonight at 11:00 o'clock. And I will intercept him and
have him start drafting the affidavit this evening. It
is a pressing issue. I don't know how we are going to
prepare to respond to this in a matter of days or hours
before the arbitration begins And I do th1nk we should
resolve it because the rea11ty is all of these issues
should be resolved holistically. I don't see a
particular need to push anything off for the upcoming
weeks. It just means the upcoming weeks are going to be
harder and more chaotic for everyone involved.

If it's going to be exc1uded on the basis of
affidavits or not in ten days we m1ght as we11 know
that now. we can get that aff1dav1ts together and we
can brief it.
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MR. DUNN: This is Dan ‘Dunn. May I respond to that?

My reaction is this: That if the Respondent
believes that the evidence should not be considered, as
the proponent of that position, it ‘'should put its
arguments forth, and we should have a fair opportunity
to respond. But at most, we're talking, 1f I understand

Mr. Campbell's question, it related to the:decision by 13
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the laboratory not to allow Mr. Scott into the premises
on sunday after he had agreed ot to appear. And if
that's the narrow issue, we're talking at most a couple
of the sample resu1ts; not: the entirety. So a couple
things: oOne it's a very nérrowlissue; and, two, if
there is evidence that they have about the reasons they
were excluded or not, then_we'd be happy to respond to
it because I think we'll be able to show -- and this is
argument at this point -- that_there was nothihg
inappropriate dqne. . L - '

MR. SUH: This isfMduEité._.It-is_not é narrow issue
for us. what we would be prepared to show the panel and
to explain to the panel is how, during the process in
which our experts were actually allowed in the lab for
the first five days, they were excluded from viewing
critical parts of the testing, in particular the
analysis, and that they were not allowed tq ask
questions of the 1abdratoFy personnel and that this came
at the direction of Mr. bunn, Who was there. And that
while at the same time Mr. punn and their expert,
Rodrigo Aguilara had full access to the laboratory and

to all stages and processes that were involved.
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And so there are two issues. There's one of
the asymmetrical access during the course of the time

that they were allowed inside the laboratory and ”
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secondly, at the time they were excluded entirely. And
lastly -- I mean, just to give one example, which we
would be happy to brief, we didn't get to see all the
results. Wwe didn't get to see critical parts of the
results, which we'd be happy to brief. p

So let's set a briéfing schedu1e;; I mean, I
think it's a great idea. 1I'd rather deal with this
issue sooner rather than later.

MR. BRUNET: what are you suggesting, Mr. Suh, in
terms of the briefing schedule because I --

MR. SUH: what I would suggest 1"s tHat --

MR. BRUNET: We're trying to assess a credibility
simply based on affidavits (breakthrough) testimony,
which we've determined the testimony would be presented
at the hearing.

MR. JACOBS: This is Howard Jacobs. what we would
propose is we would submit a motion with affidavits by
Friday. USADA could respond by Monday If the panel
wanted to have quest1on1ng of the aff1ants, that could
be done in short order afterwards and the issue could
be decided.

MR. BRUNET: Mr. Jacobs, are you suggesting that
this is a parallel point that you would 1ntroducé that
would not affect the may schedu]é?

MR. JACOBS: This would be a separaté point that we

‘ 45
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would brief separately that I think wou1d'be decided
separately because it does affect how the case is going
to be presented on this concrete jssue.

MR. DUNN: This is Dan Dunn. Mr. Brunet, you
started to raise the question about whether this depends
on the credibility of the affiants, and I fhink this
just Tike any other evidence. We would be prepared to
present our people and tell the panel what happened.

The other side will have its fair opportunity to say
what it believes. And the panel can make its own
decision about whether the data was gathered in a fair
way. So I think a briefing‘gchedu1e_at thjs point is
probably not a good jdeé from our”pekspectﬁve, but it's
the panel's decision to make ultimately. |

MR. JACOBS: This is Howard Jacobs again responding.
I mean, we either brief it now, or we wait and deal with
it at the hearing. And waiting and dealing with it at
the hearing I think is a terribly inefficient way to do
it, especially given‘that.wefre‘going to bé hard pressed
to finish. R |

MR. CAMPBELL: This‘isvchris Campbell. Not only
would you be hard pressed, but I think's unfair. This
is an important issue that should be decided before you
develop or argue your case. I just‘don't See it as an

issue that can wait.
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MR. JACOBS: so we'd fully prepared to present it to
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the panel on the time table that I proposed.

MR. BRUNET: The panel hasn't even received the test
results.

MR. JACOBS: Maybe we shouldn't. That's the point.
It all depends on this access issue, in my. mind. I
mean, I know the rules that ~- L 3

MR. BRUNET: There are a number of test results that
will not even be effected by the testimony that may come
our way.

MR. CAMPBELL: well, that's an issue that's iin
dispute, Mr. Brunet. I mean --

MR. BRUNET: I'm sorry. I missed that. I thought
some of the tests had been‘comp1eted prior to that
Sunday incident. |

MR. SUH: Mr. Brunet, this 1vaaurice.‘ Yes, 1in
fact, some had been. But as I was trying te explain
before, our experts were excluded from critica1 parts of
the testing process even before they were excluded from
the building. They were exc1uded throughout from day
one through to the end And they were a1so not allowed
to see critical documents nor were they a11owed to ask
questions. And this process was directed by USADA, and
we're prepared to prove it.

And I think Mr. campbell is rightvthat it does 47
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not depend upon what the test results area. The test
results could be all negative; they could be all

positive; they could be green or yeT1ow or blue. It
doesn't matter. whether or not the process was done
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fairly is a threshold matter, and it doesn't matter

whether or not -- and frankly, it would save everyone,
including the panel, a lot of work.

we're going to‘haye to reach these issues in
any case. |

MR. CAMPBELL: Here's my thought. My thought is the
rules are pretty clear that (breakthrough) has a right
to be there, and I'm not so sure if the rules are clear
about other people have to be at the B testing. But it
seems to me that if that is an issue, 1et'$ get to the
bottom of it; Tet's get it resolved, and we can move on.
I hear a dispute. we should have with it resolved
before the hearing takes place.

MR. DUNN: This is Dan Dunn. Not to belabor it
because we have gotten off the agenda, but ultimately
what you're doing to have is a wholesale attack on all
of the samples by the ath1ete, and you're going to have
affidavits from us fn resbdnse to fhat, and you're going
to have credibility issues to assess in that regard.

And if it's not Timited to the Sunday results, this

could be a very prolonged process, and I suggest maybe
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it's just better to do this as part of the“evidence that

will be presented 1ike most evidence is haﬁd1ed.

MR. SUH: well, no, no.

MR. JACOBS: It would be handled as a motion 1in
limine like it is in any civil trial.

MR. SUH: And moreover, onevof the 1ss@és that we
save for briefing but Igthiﬁk really does beér

mentioning at this point is that the entirety of the
Page 43
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testing process occurred in the absence of, the panel's
expert as required by paragraph 19 of ProeedUra1 order
No. 2. '

I mean, when the procedural order was written,
the safeguards that we were complaining about that there
was a lack of, the panel's response in procedural order
No. 2 in paragraph 19 was that our concerns would be
safeguarded by the presehee[of a panel expert, and
Dr. Botre wasn't there. He wasn't there for any part of
it.

MR. CAMPBELL: So we hadn't even picked -- this is
Chris campbell -- at that point, had we?

MR. SUH: That's exact1y my point. They could have
waited. we're pat1ent1y wa1t1ng to get the EDF's
because Dr. Botre wasn t appo1nted we haven t gotten
our evidence. But USADA dec1ded to go forward

unilaterally to go get their evidence. And that is what
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is unfair about this process. How is that fair? The
panel decided upon an expert,van independent expert who
was originally appointed because they were concerned
that we would tamper with the electronic data files.
That was the accusation filed by Rieh Young on February
22. He leveled that accusation.

In response the‘bane1'sa1d "Okay we'll

appoint an expert." Dur1ng the course of that hear1ng,
\. '

we raised concerns wh1ch were symmetr1ca1 The

concerns -- as they became f1eshed out further on, the

concerns that if retesting occurred, that we wouldn't
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have the assurance that there would be somebody there

protecting our rights. And the panel's response to it

was that a panel expert would be appointed to protect

our rights.
well, Tlook at what's happéned. Our rights have
not been protected in' the retesting process, but their

rights are being protected by this WHo1e EDF process.
We don't get our evidence till supposedly days before;
they are arguing nonetheless we should file our trial
brief without that evidence. And in the same breath
they argue that they themselves should have the benefit
of waiting to argue about the admissibility of this
evidence in the middle of the arbitration. That is

patently unfair. That is completely asymmetrical. 50
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MR. BRUNET: This is Mr. Brunet. I just want to
remind you that (breakthrough) your argument between the
EDF and the retesting process I d 11ke to ‘bring your
attention back to our 1nter1ocutory award

The EDF prior to this arbitration, part of the
evidence, part of the raw evidence (breakthrough);
however, the testing is something that we have qualified
as being outside of the arbitration until such time that
the claimant wants to introduce_it as évidénce. And
I'11 read back with you our paragraph 21 of the
interlocutory award.

"The authority of the panel is to rule on the
admissibility of evidence. It is not within the
authority of the panel to rule on the gathering of

potential evidence by any party. Once poteﬁtia]
i Page 45 Lo



16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

25

W W N O VI bW N R

ol i = e S o S Gy
© N O VU A W N R O

07Landis04241.txt
evidence if obtained and when it is preferred as
evidence in the arbitration proceeding, then the panel
must rule on its admissibility as evidence."

And it seems to me that the results of the
retesting which you have provided to the panel have not
been provided to the panel by USADA yet. It may intend
to, but we don't have that indication at this point in
time. I would be -- although I understand very clearly
the pressing issues that you re ra1s1ng, but it seems to

me that it would be premature ‘for the pane1 to be 51

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

receiving briefs by both parties‘at this point in time
as a preliminary matter for evidence that has not been
preferred by one of the parties. Andzthose are my
observations at this point, and we want to be consistent
as well with our previous ru1ihg. |

MR. JACOBS: If I can just finish. I'm looking at
the interlocutory award. And in paragraph 19 it says,
"the interests of the athlete are protected in
permitting an ana1ys1s of the B samp1es through the role
of the panel's expert " That was - c1ear to :us, and I
thought to the pane1 as we11 that this meant that this
retesting, if it went forward, would be in the presence
of the panel's expert.

| It's one thing to say that the panel does not

have jurisdiction to prevent the evidence but certainly
the panel has the Jur1sd1ct1on to make. sure that the
evidence it gets is 1eg1t1mate evidence.

MR. BRUNET: W1th all due respect, Mr. Jacobs, I do
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not understand our interlocutory award to spec1f1ca11y

request that a panel expert would be present at every
step of the retesting of the B sample. our experts is
there to review the process and to advise the panel on
the various technical issues, including additional
evidence that may be preferred with the B sample. But

we're not there yet. 5
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MR. CAMPBELL: Patrice, here's my thrust. You've
got rules, and those rules are USADA protocol and WADA
protocol (phonetic.) Those rules say that, when you
test B samples, certa1n1th1ngs have to happen ATl
right? Now, if certain th1ngs don t happen, it seems to
me we have jurisdiction to determ1ne that. It seems to
me we have jurisdiction to determine that any time,
which would include now. So I think we should determine
that because there's an issue in regards to whether
those rules were followed. The WADA code and USADA code
with respect to doping issues.

MR. SUH: Mr. Brunet, I guess my only observation on
paragraph 19 was that even USADA understood that the
panel's expert was due to be present because in their
letter to the panel, USADA itself said for the purpose
of coordinating with the pane1's expert, we;re going to
begin this retesting process on Apr11 16. And it is not
clear to us how it 1s poss1b1e that the pane1 expert
could protect the interest of the athlete w1thout being
present when the retesting is being done.

MR. JACOBS: And if I can add, a perfect example of

this dispute that we seem to be working up to now over
Page 47
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what our expert was allowed to see and now allowed to
see and what interference there was and what

interference there was not -- that's now going to be a

[

1 s A
Ui ' : ¥
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credibility determination -- would not have been if this
whole thing had been done in front of the panel expert.
So now we have an additional complication by rushing to
do the one evidence while waiting on the other evidence.

MR. BRUNET: Well, it seems to be in either ruling
from the panel, we're going to take that under
advisement. And if you don't’mind, I'd Tike to go back
to the our agenda unless you have any other issues. And
again the ruling of the panel should be very quick.
After this call, we'll continue our discussion between
fhe three of us and consider all the arguménts that have
been made by both parfiesliq | §ﬁ

MR. JACOBS: The dne question I have as a point of
clarification before we move off this point: when the
panel rules, it will advise whether or not it desires
this separate briefing that we've discussed?

MR. BRUNET: Brew that's my understandfng of your
request, Mr. Jacobs.

MR. JACOBS: Okay. Thanks.

MR. SUH: Are we back on the briefing schedule 1issue
because we did have a proposal on fhe tab1é, which 1
thought met everyone's concerns that at Tleast attempted
to fairly balance Mr. Landis's concerns against the
forward motion of this arbitration. N

MR. BRUNET: cOu]q7ydu‘4— where were we at with the
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briefing schedule?

MR. SUH: We proposed that by tomorrow we would send
over a list of the issues and defenses so that USADA
would not be concerned that we would raise a defense
that Nazi frog men had come up and injected Mr. Landis
with testosterone and. at the séme-time con%ihue the
process of reviewing the Soﬁ's and other dbcuments that
are due to us and the EDF files which would be the
process which would begin on this coming Thursday, such
that we would have our opening brief filed by the 4th of
May and that Respondent's brief would be -- excuse me --
the claimant's brief would be filed on the 9th of May .

MR. BRUNET: My notes mention the 8th of May for the
Claimant's rebuttal.

MR. SUH: That's fine with us.

MR. BRUNET: oOkay.

And, Mr. Young, I recall you had an objection
to this proposal? Mr. Young?

We apparently haVé;]ost --

Rich, arevyoﬁ fherg?

Matt, are you theré?

MR. BARNETT: I am here. we'll send someone to try
to find out when we Tost Mr. Young.

On behalf of USADA, I1'11 renew our objection to

that schedule. 1It's interesting that they're now so s
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willing to provide a simple Tist of defenses that we've
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been asking for for months and they're unable to provide
that.

MR. BRUNET: Mr. Barnett, the deadline is tomorrow.
That was part of the briefing schedule.

MR. BARNETT: Understood.

Let me just raise the additional concern that
not only does this affect the briefing schedule, but it
also affects the identification of witnesses. And I
believe, while it was quite a few minutes ago, that that
was Mr. young's objection in part, was that that's a
very short time to find out when the witnesses are. And
T guess I haven't heard from Mr. Suh or Mr. Jacobs what
they propose on witness dég]aratidn. !

MR. SUH: we could do it all at the saie time.

MR. JACOBS: The witness statement schedule we're
not proposing any change to. It would be the witness
statements on May 4. |

MR. SUH: Wwe would just file everything at the same
time. 4

MR. BARNETT: Two po{nts: we would certainly unable
to put in our witnesseS without knowing your witnesses.
That was the reason that originally it was Mr. suh who
suggested that the witness 1list be put in with the

rebuttal proposal.
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i

The other pﬁece that concerns me -- and I was
on the call with pr. Botre today. The understanding
with Dr. Botre -- and he sent the panel an e-mail that
the panel may not have had the chance to review -- is
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that the electronic data files will be pulled on

Thursday. (Simultaneous speaking at this point.)
MR. BRUNET: I'm sorry. I missed that last
exchange. _ . - . N
MR. YOUNG: This is Rieh Young. I'm trying -- I can
hear you guys. I'm trying to get on. Can you hear me?
MR. BRUNET: Yes, we can hear you.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you. Sorry to interrupt.
MR. BARNETT: And Tet me just continue the point on
Dr. Botre, and I'l1l turn it back over to Mr. Young.

The understanding with Dr. Botre is the
electronic data files will be collected on Thursday, and
the parties representatives and Dr. Botre will begin the
dialogue then as to what the next process is. I don't
believe there's any basis at‘this point for the
assertion that that is a process that wi11:be done by
May 1. And so I worry abdut setting a briefing schedule
contingent on that when'thaf's an”uhknbwn.ﬁ And for that
reason, I would prefer the‘sﬁpp1ement appréach.

MR. YOUNG: This is Rich. we've talked about all of

this before. The point -- we would agree with what I 57
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thought I heard the chairmae‘saying before Mr. Suh spoke
over him, which was file your brief, and then you can
supplement. _

And you know, it does us a.1itt1e bit of good
but not a Tot of good to simply give a list of issues
because, as you can te11 from the test, the devil is in
the detail. And for us to proper1y prepare experts and

know what's coming, we need to know the deta11 we
Page 51 ¢
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won't know the detail on the electronic data files, but
that's fine. There's nothing'they can do about that.
we've all been waiting for that. we may not know the
detail on what they're going to say about the SOP's, but
we understand that, too. But to the extent that they've
had their defenses all along, they ought to file a
brief. i

MR. BRUNET: okay. well, thank you, Mr. Young.

I guess we have a d1sagreement here and that
will be another point that the panel will discuss and
take under advisement after this call, and that will be
part of the very last communication.

I guess while you're (breakthrough).

MR. JACOBS: We have a br1ef due tomorrow
MR. BRUNET: I guess 1t s fair to say that you'll be
advised been the next couple hours.

MR. CAMPBELL: Patrice, we could give them a day,

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

couldn't we? we cou]d g1ve them a day re11ef on the
brief just so we can reso1ve this 1ssue :

R1chard does a day upset the t1metab1e too
much?

MR. YOUNG: No. No, it does not.

MR. CAMPBELL: Okay. well, Patr“ice I think we just
can give them a day SO that they have --

MR. BRUNET: We can certa1n1y push the date -- you
can certainly take for granted that the date is pushed
to the 26th, notwithstanding the -- whatever direction
we give the parties. So you can take for granted it

Page 52

58



12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

O 00 N OO0 i D W N R

o ~ I o S S S G
i A W N R O

07Landis04241. txt
(breakthrough). It will not be earlier than

(breakthrough) you requested. And you can sleep your
three hours.

MR. SUH: Let me emphasize to the panel that it's
not -- the issue is not, from our perspective, certainly
not the lack of sleep or anything like that. That's not
it at all. |

The issue for us is really that the data that
we are awaiting on is so global in nature and so tied up
with the existing issues, especially those that are
raised by the Claimant, that we cannot fairly respond to
them in this timeframe. And to say that wé are to file
a brief, whether it be tomdfrow or(Thursda§, and then

supplement it is going to mean that we are going to have 59
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to write two briefs. That is what they are really
saying. And, 1in fact; I thiﬁkiMr. Young‘exp1ic1t1y
recognized it. He said, "If it changes, so be it. Make
them write it again."

And you know, again, when we Took at the
relative amount of what has been taken by USADA and what
has been given to Mr. Landis in these proceedings, it's
just not fair. It's not fair. I Mean, wefre dealing

with all of these 1sSués at the 'nth hour.f
. N | ' T . N “y

MR. BRUNET: You've made YOur point veﬁy clear to
the panel. I think you. we're going to move on to the
next point of being the proposed witness order.

MR. SUH: Mr. Brunet?

MR. BRUNET: Yes.

MR. SUH: 1It's Maurice. ‘I have received a whispered
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request from our reporter if we could take a brief
break. she has been typing away dutifu11i,

MR. CAMPBELL: THis.is\éhris'Eémbbe11.é I really
need a break. o ' :

MR. BRUNET: Let's all take a ten-minute break.
Let's all please stay on the line, and we will reconvene
in exactly ten minutes.

(A short recess was taken.)

MR. SUH: Hello?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ﬁe11o.

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

MR. SUH: Hello. 1It's Maurice, Howard, Dan, and our
court reporter. Are we back Oﬁ 1ine? We'Qé gdt ten
minutes. m‘ ;VVI  “ o

MR. BRUNET: Yeah, 1t'§ exact1y ten miﬁutes.

Mr. McLaren?

MR. MCLAREN: I'm here.

MR. BRUNET: Mr. Suh?

MR. SUH: Yes. 1I'm here with Howard Jacobs, Dan
wWeiss, and our court reporter.

MR. BRUNET: Thank you.

Mr. Barnett?

MR. BARNETT: Yes.

MR. BRUNET: Mr. Dunn?

MR. DUNN: Yes. Can you hear me? I'm on my way to

an airport; so I'm goingvto put it on mute most of the

time. Can you hear me okay?
MR. BRUNET: We can hear you fine. You can mute
your phone now. Thank you.
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Let's go back to the agenda. Proposed witness

order. Have the parties had a chance to -- I think that
issue is resolved.

MR. SUH: Yes, I think that issue's resolved. Thank
you.

MR. BRUNET: Okay. Move on (breakthrough) media

order media consultant I'd Tike to set aside at this 61
N [ :g{ . .

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

point in time. we're having discussions with the AAA.
And I think carmen is coordinating a phone call with the
panel members by tomorrow. So we'll review and update
the parties on that subject very shortly.

The proposed confidentiality order, this was a
point that was raised by Mr. Saw.

MR. SUH: Mr. Brunet, I only included it on the

agenda for the panel's benefit. Thé panel had asked us
to prepare something and submit it for circulation. It

was really done to address the concerns raised a while
: I : ._(. .

ago. I just wanted tblbut oh.the”agenda juét in case it
had passed the panel by but the panel wou1a still
nonetheless have been interested in it.
If the panel is not interested in it anymore,

it's of no moment to us. |

MR. BARNETT: This is Matt Bar‘nett‘. I mean, for
context, that prbposed cohfidentfa]ity ordér arose out
of our concerns regardfng‘gémésmanship with the press,
as the panel will recall. we filed a recent submission
on that. I would suggest that those two issues are

probably related in some way to the proposed medial

order and media consultant, but I'11 defer to the panel.
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MR. BRUNET: That's what the panel understood as
well. And we will discuss this matter among ourselves

and update you on our position.
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The following point is the briefing schedule.
Do we have anything else to add on this point, or can I
understand that we have extensively discussed this point
and that it's in the hands of the panel now?

MR. SUH: I thinkfwe have discussed 1tjat sufficient
Tength unless the panel Has further questibns of it.

MR. CAMPBELL: I think we've beat it to death. This
is Chris Campbell.

MR. BRUNET: I'm sorry? I didn't get that, chris.
what did you say?‘_

MR. CAMPBELL: I think we beat that issue to death.

MR. BRUNET: oOkay. Thank y ou.

The setting of the final status conference,
those technical points are very valid such as length of
arbitration day, length of each of the cases of each of
the parties. uUnless there's a pressing.issue today to
resolve this or to d1scuss th1s, there's st111 a few
things that we need to -- techn1ca1 matters that we need
to discuss with Pepperd1ne Un1vérs1ty and the media
consultant and the coordination of it all. so I would
suggest that we keep this point for further discussion
perhaps next week.

MR. CAMPBELL: Patrice, this is chris Campbell.
Regarding the setting of the final status gonference,
I'm just wondering if eitherlof‘the‘parties have a
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comment or suggested date for that.

MR. SUH: I would think that final status conference
we would want to hold at some time the middle of the
week preceding the 8th or 9th. But I would encourage
all of us to define these 1ssues‘because they do relate
pretty severely to witness schedule.

In particular, the order of the witnesses. we
have many witnesses who are coming from out of town, and
they are asking us, very fairly, when they should be
here. And the length of the arbitration day and the
protocol for taking some of these people out of order is
going to make a huge difference on ease and convenience.

I would suggest one way io ease tbe concern of
putting together this kind of really eventiis to have a
fairly Tiberal policy taking witnesses out of order just
to accommodate schedules. Because this is a highly
technical case, we have professionals testifying, and
their schedules are busy. So I think it's‘jmportant for
us to at Teast know that we can.do that. And that might
ease some of our conéerns.'l

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. Suh, have you discussed with this
USADA?

MR. SUH: We have not discussed it with USADA.

MR. CAMPBELL: And, Patrice, if you don't mind, I'm
just wondering if your guys cod]d work togéther and see 64

Yoo
W
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if you could present us with some kind of schedule
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jointly so that we could, hopefully, just send orders on
the 9th or the 10th of May.

MR. SUH: A1l right. That would be fine. we're
circulate something. _

MR. CAMPBELL: Patrice, are you comfortable with
that? o ;,;

MR. BRUNET: Yeah. We;re on the same page as Chris.
we would rather the parties, obviously, hammer this out
in as much detail as possible. And obviously the panel
can resolve issues, but I don't think that those issues
may be so big that you need the intervention of the
panel. |

There will also be requirement for an in-person
coordination meeting‘probab1y the day prior of the first
day of the hearing, being the 14th. So whether it's the
day prior or two days prior, depending on the travel
schedule for everyone, it's also something we want to
keep in mind. 1'd 1ike_the parties and the panel to sit
down together at least a day béfore the stért of the
hearing so that we gef all those techhica1%ties out of
the way and we can all be on thé same page*on May 14.

MR. CAMPBELL: Patrice, what time do you think that
meeting would take place?

MR. BRUNET: what time? well, I'11 let the parties -

ROUGH COPY - HAS NOT BEEN PROOFREAD

discuss it among themselves. I will be in the city at
Teast two days 1in advance.‘ Do I assume rightly, chris
and Richard, that you will both be there at least a day
in advance? ’
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MR. YOUNG: Correct.

MR. CAMPBELL.:

This is chris campbell. I'm

scheduled to fly in on Sunday. I'm not quite sure what

time I'm scheduled to fly in. 1I'11 move it up if I have

to.

MR. BRUNET: The parties can (breakthrough) the

afternoon of sunday, the 13th, is maybe most convenient

for Chris. Because I would assume you would be

traveling a short flight in the morning?

MR. CAMPBELL:

I'm one of the closest.: So +it's more

your convenience, your and Richard's convehience. But I

just need to know because I would need to éhange my

flight maybe.
MR. BRUNET:

We

11, certainly, it won't any later

than sunday afternoon. So Tet's try and shoot for that

time to meet in person.

So on this point, is it fair to assume that the

parties will discuss together --

MR. SUH: Hello?

MR. BRUNET:

Ho

1d on just a second. I'm just

getting back to my agenda.

ROUGH COPY ?‘HAS-NOT:BEEN PROOFREAD

. .
| o £

okay. Do you want to set a date by which the

parties will communicate those technical details to the

panel?

MR. SUH: Yes.

MR. BRUNET:

Fr

How about by Friday?
iday what? May the 4th or the

previous Friday? This coming Friday?

MR. SUH: This toming'Friday.

MR. BRUNET:

Mr.

Young (breakthrough).
‘ Page 59
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I didn't hear‘énything. er. You@g or Barnett?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That's fine with us. I
didn't hear.

MR. CAMPBELL: This is chris Campbell. This Friday?

MR. SUH: Right.

MR. BRUNET: This Friday. okay.

MR. YOUNG: This is Rich Young. cCan you hear me?

MR. CAMPBELL: Yeah.

MR. BRUNET: Now we can hear you.

MR. YOUNG: oOkay. And is Matt Barnett on, too?

MR. BARNETT: I'm on.

MR. YOUNG: Okay. Good.

MR. BRUNET: The parties will establish the

8

A

technical details for the hearing and commiinicate that
to the panel. '
I understand also -- going back to the agenda,

we're on point No. 7 that was added, the result of the B
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test. I understand that we.éd?ered that 1§sue, and the
final point is the Eéquest for continuance.

Mr. Suh, do you st111 want to hold that point
or explain that point to the panel?

MR. SUH: well, I meén, first of all, yes. we renew
our request. It is unclear to us if -- and I know part
of this depends upon‘sqmngf the ru1jngs fﬁat will come.
But it is unclear to US.hOWtWé‘WOUT&;be‘abié to.
adequately prepare to basically try results from a
number of different IRMS tests which the documents that
we won't get till days before. And we're not even sure
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what the scope of those documents are.

USADA has announeed its intention once those
documents come in to try to use those test results, and
we know that issue is coming.

Yeah, the requestfié reneWed We can argue it.
I feel 1ike we have argued th1s po1nt in great detail in
terms of scheduling, and we've made all the points that
apply to our need for additional time on our briefing
equally apply to the need for more time.

MR. BRUNET: Mr. Young and Mr. Barnett, do you have
a request for continuance?

MR. YOUNG: This 1is Rich. we would defer to the
panel's judgment in terms of what is the fair and right

thing to do in this case. The one thing that we 63
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absolutely do not want to see happen is to end up in
some sort of b1furcated tr1a1 where we all: go away and
then have to come back aga1n at some you know months
later date when that would be very inefficient.

As to the retesting in specific, we wouldn't be
in this situation had they not objected to the retesting
months and months ago.

MR. SUH: And juSt to make perfectly clear, the
amount of time that was sbent in fairTy considering this
issue by the panel is far less than the amount of time
that they could have used to test that right after the
tour occurred. This is their case. They brought it.
And it was their responsibility to handle it in an
appropriate way. And now --

MR. BRUNET: Mr, Suh I d1dn t get the sense that
© " Page 61 ! i
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Mr. Young was finished with his statement.

MR. YOUNG: I actually was finished. Thank you,
Mr. Brunet.

MR. BRUNET: Okay. 1I'm sorry.

Please go on, Mr. Suh.

MR. SUH: I'm finished also. I just -- we've
repeatedly heard that somehow we are at fault here on
the final schedule. And from our perspective, we have
repeatedly tried to make sure that these matters are

handled quickly. Again, it does us no good at all -- it 69
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does us no good at all to wait till the‘1ast minute.

MR. BARNETT: This is:Mat; Barnett. And I think
it's only fair that the ﬁeeord reflect that our original
submission to the panel -- ahd I don't have the month
for you. I'm sorry. But many months ago when they
objected to the retesting was that we go forward and do
it and that the object{on as to admissib11ity be
preserved in order to avo1d exact1y the time of crunch
that they're now object1ng to | And so 1t 1s completely
fair that the b1ame for any 1ast m1nute ru;h rests
squarely on their shou1ders because they have taken
every maneuver possible to try to prevent that
additional analysis from occurring.

MR. JACOBS: Real quickly in response. The point
that USADA 1is missing is that these samp1es with
collected in July and they d1dn t raise the issue about
retesting until nearly January. That's the point that

we're making. when they say that the delay is
Page 62
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exclusively our fault, they completely ignore the part

where they waited six months to even bring it up.

MR. BARNETT: And we raised it in response to
defenses that were asserted, specifically the defense
that how can the test on the subject sample be accurate
if it is the only positive test. And when we did raise

it in January, we were threatened with federal
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Titigation. So I think the record is clear on this

point, and we'll stand on the record.

MR. SUH: I think the record stands on your conduct.

MR. BRUNET: Gent1émen£fthank ybu. wégve gone

through the agenda. It's been two aﬂd a qharter hours.
Mr. Suh, unless you have any final comments or
Questions for the panel?

MR. SUH: No. Thank you very much for convening
this call on our‘request and on short notice while
you've been traveling. . ' »

MR. BRUNET: Mr. Campbell, Mr. McLaren, do you have
any questions for the parties?

MR. MCLAREN: No.

MR. CAMPBELL: No. ‘

MR. BRUNET: well, thank you everyoné for being on
this call with the variohs differences. It is

challenging, but ndthing‘is;impossib1e in this world.

so thank you. o ‘ ‘?
And you should be receiving follow-up messages

from the panel as I indicated earlier in the

conversation. You should receive that over the next

hours.
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Thank you very much. Goodbye.
(The status conference was concluded at

6:14 p.m.) 71
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